MINUTES CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF MORENO VALLEY September 4, 2018

CALL TO ORDER - 5:30 PM

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

- 1. Business Spotlight
 - a) Marinaj Banquet Hall
 - b) Cold Stone Creamery
- 2. Recognition of Mary Hackworth as the MVPD Classified Employee of the first quarter.
- 3. Proclamation Recognizing September as National Preparedness Month

MINUTES JOINT MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORENO VALLEY MORENO VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT CITY AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOR THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF MORENO VALLEY MORENO VALLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES

REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 PM September 4, 2018

CALL TO ORDER

The Joint Meeting of the City Council, Community Services District, City as Successor Agency for the Community Redevelopment Agency of the City of Moreno Valley, Moreno Valley Housing Authority and the Board of Library Trustees was called to order at 6:04 p.m. by Mayor Pro Tem Baca in the Council Chamber located at 14177 Frederick Street.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Frank Wright.

INVOCATION

Lieutenant Jen Liggett, Salvation Army

ROLL CALL

Council:	Victoria Baca	Mayor Pro Tem
	David Marquez	Council Member
	Ulises Cabrera	Council Member
	Jeffrey J. Giba	Council Member

Absent:

Dr. Yxstian A. Gutierrez

Mayor

INTRODUCTIONS

Staff:	Pat Jacquez-Nares Angel Migao	City Clerk Executive Assistant to the Mayor and City Council
	Marshall Eyerman Martin Koczanowicz	Chief Financial Officer/City Treasurer City Attorney

Thomas M. DeSantis Allen Brock	City Manager Assistant City Manager
Mike Lee	Economic Development Director
Rick Sandzimier	Community Development Director
David Kurylowicz	Chief of Police
Mark Williams	Battalion Chief
Kathleen Sanchez	Human Resources Director
Patti Solano	Parks & Community Services Director
Michael Wolfe	Director of Public Works/City Engineer

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ANY SUBJECT NOT ON THE AGENDA UNDER THE JURISDICTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL

Veronica Steele

- 1. Called for Code Enforcement to administer all aspects of the City's Code.
- 2. Requested that an instructional notice be mailed to homeowners reminding them of laws and regulations imposed by the City.

Bob Palomarez

- 1. Commended both the Fire and Police Departments for their exemplary work.
- 2. Expressed his opposition to comments made by speakers at the August 21, 2018 Council Meeting.

Louise Palomarez

- 1. Condemned particular speakers at the August 21, 2018 City Council Meeting.
- 2. Voiced her frustrations with the voting record of a Council Member.

Rafael Brugueras

1. Extolled the virtues of Moreno Valley as compared to Puerto Rico.

JOINT CONSENT CALENDARS (SECTIONS A-D)

Council Member Giba requested that Item Nos. A.5 and A.6 be removed for a separate vote.

RESULT:	APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER:	Jeffrey J. Giba, Council Member
SECONDER:	Ulises Cabrera, Council Member
AYES:	Victoria Baca, David Marquez, Ulises Cabrera, Jeffrey J. Giba
ABSENT:	Dr. Yxstian A. Gutierrez

A. CONSENT CALENDAR-CITY COUNCIL

A.1. ORDINANCES - READING BY TITLE ONLY - THE MOTION TO ADOPT AN ORDINANCE LISTED ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR INCLUDES WAIVER OF FULL READING OF THE ORDINANCE.

Recommendation: Waive reading of all Ordinances.

A.2. City Council - Closed Session - Aug 21, 2018 4:30 PM

Recommendation: Approve as submitted.

A.3. City Council - Regular Meeting - Aug 21, 2018 6:00 PM

Recommendation: Approve as submitted.

Council Member Giba questioned why the Council Meeting minutes are now truncated.

A.4. APPROVE FIRST AMENDMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR MORENO VALLEY COLLEGE PROMISE INITIATIVE (Report of: City Clerk)

Council Member Cabrera lauded the merits of the item.

Recommendations:

- 1. Approve the First Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Moreno Valley and Riverside Community College District to extend support for first year Moreno Valley resident students attending Moreno Valley College via the Promise Initiative.
- 2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the attached Memorandum of Understanding with Riverside Community College District and authorize the one-time \$50,000 expenditure.
- 3. Authorize a budget adjustment to the General Fund budget as set forth in the Fiscal Impact section of this report.
- A.5. ITEM NO. A.5 WAS REMOVED FOR SEPARATE VOTE BY COUNCIL MEMBER GIBA AND MOVED TO ITEM NO. F.1
- A.6. ITEM NO. A.6 WAS REMOVED FOR SEPARATE VOTE BY COUNCIL MEMBER GIBA AND MOVED TO ITEM NO. F.2
- A.7. LIST OF PERSONNEL CHANGES (Report of: Human Resources)

Recommendation:

- 1. Ratify the list of personnel changes as described.
- A.8. AUTHORIZATION TO AWARD BID TO ENCO UTILITY SERVICES MORENO VALLEY LLC FOR THE MVU STREETLIGHT LED RETROFIT PROJECT NO. 805 0053 (Report of: Financial & Management Services)

Council Member Giba asked, on behalf of a resident, how the item complies with Proposition 26.

City Manager DeSantis responded that the staff report provides a comprehensive presentation on the proposed item.

Council Member Giba queried how the project would be funded.

City Manager DeSantis stated that the financing would not come from the General Fund.

Recommendations:

- 1. Award the Bid to ENCO Utility Services Moreno Valley LLC, the lowest responsible bidder, for the MVU Streetlight Retrofit project in the amount of \$461,537 including a 15% contingency of \$69,231 for a project total not to exceed \$530,768.
- 2. Authorize the Chief Financial Officer/City Treasurer to execute any subsequent related minor change orders to the contract with ENCO Utility Services Moreno Valley LLC up to, but not exceeding, the contingencies for the project as stated in the report, subject to the approval of the City Attorney.
- A.9. AWARD OF AN AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL DISTRICTS CONSULTING SERVICES TO MULTIPLE CONSULTANTS (Report of: Public Works)

Recommendations:

- 1. Approve each Agreement for Project Related Services, in substantially the form attached hereto, with NBS, Webb Municipal Finance, LLC, and Willdan Financial Services to provide special tax consulting services on an as-needed basis for individual not-to exceed amounts of \$150,000.
- 2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreements and subject to the approval of the City Attorney, and provided sufficient funding appropriations and program approvals have been granted by the City Council, authorize the Public Works Director/City Engineer to execute project specific agreements in accordance with the terms of the Agreements.
- A.10. PA13-0063 MODULAR LOGISTICS CENTER ADOPTION OF THE PROPOSED RESOLUTION FOR THE SUMMARY VACATION OF A PORTION OF EDWIN ROAD LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF EDWIN ROAD WEST OF KITCHING STREET. DEVELOPER: 17350 PERRIS BOULEVARD, LLC (Report of: Public Works)

Recommendations:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2018-71. A Resolution of the City Council of

the City of Moreno Valley, California, Ordering the Summary Vacation of a Portion of Edwin Road Located on the South Side of Edwin Road West of Kitching Street.

- 2. Direct the City Clerk to certify said resolution and transmit a copy of the resolution to the County Recorder's office for recording.
- A.11. APPROVE THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT SERVICES WITH KOA FOR THE JUAN BAUTISTA DE ANZA MULTI-USE TRAIL - PHASE 2, PROJECT NO. 801 0077 (Report of: Public Works)

Council Member Cabrera requested that Public Works Director/City Engineer Wolfe explain the project.

Public Works Director/City Engineer Wolfe provided information regarding the location of the proposed improvements.

Council Member Cabrera expressed his approval of the project.

Recommendations:

- 1. Approve the First Amendment to Agreement for Professional Consultant Services with KOA Corporation to provide design consultant services for the Juan Bautista De Anza Multi-Use Trail Phase 2 Segment from El Portero Park to Lake Perris State Recreation Area.
- 2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the First Amendment to Agreement for Professional Consultant Services with KOA Corporation.
- 3. Authorize a Change Order to increase the Purchase Order with KOA Corporation for the amount of \$192,386.00 when the First Amendment has been signed by all parties.
- 4. Authorize the Public Works Director/City Engineer to execute any subsequent related amendments to the Agreement for Professional Consultant Services with KOA, not to exceed the Purchase Order amount, subject to the approval by the City Attorney.
- 5. Authorize the Chief Financial Officer to approve a budget adjustment to transfer the grant funds from Project No. 801 0080 (Fund 2301) to Project No. 801 0077 (Fund 2301) for the Juan Bautista De Anza Multi-Use Trail Phase 2 as set forth in the fiscal impact section of this report.

A.12. ACCEPTANCE OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2018 BUREAU OF JUSTICE ASSISTANCE EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM AWARD (Report of: Community Development)

Recommendations:

- 1. Accept the Fiscal Year 2018 Bureau of Justice Assistance Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program grant award of \$42,900 through the City of Riverside Police Department.
- 2. Authorize the City Manager, or his designee, to execute for and on behalf of the City of Moreno Valley, agreements and other related documents required by the Bureau of Justice Assistance for participation in the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program, subject to the approval of the City Attorney.
- 3. Authorize the Chief Financial Officer, or his designee, to make any necessary budget adjustment appropriations related to expenditures and revenues for Fiscal Year 2018/2019 as outlined in the Fiscal Impact section of this report.
- A.13. Second Reading and Adoption for Ordinance No. 941 (Report of: Community Development)

Recommendation:

1. That the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 941.

B. CONSENT CALENDAR-COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

B.1. ORDINANCES - READING BY TITLE ONLY - THE MOTION TO ADOPT AN ORDINANCE LISTED ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR INCLUDES WAIVER OF FULL READING OF THE ORDINANCE.

Recommendation: Waive reading of all Ordinances.

B.2. MINUTES - CLOSED SESSION OF AUG 21, 2018 4:30 PM (See A.2)

Recommendation: Approve as submitted.

B.3. MINUTES - REGULAR MEETING OF AUG 21, 2018 6:00 PM (See A.3)

Recommendation: Approve as submitted.

C. CONSENT CALENDAR - HOUSING AUTHORITY

C.1. ORDINANCES - READING BY TITLE ONLY - THE MOTION TO ADOPT AN ORDINANCE LISTED ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR INCLUDES WAIVER OF FULL READING OF THE ORDINANCE. Recommendation: Waive reading of all Ordinances.

C.2. MINUTES - CLOSED SESSION OF AUG 21, 2018 4:30 PM (See A.2)

Recommendation: Approve as submitted.

C.3. MINUTES - REGULAR MEETING OF AUG 21, 2018 6:00 PM (See A.3)

Recommendation: Approve as submitted.

D. CONSENT CALENDAR - BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES

D.1. ORDINANCES - READING BY TITLE ONLY - THE MOTION TO ADOPT AN ORDINANCE LISTED ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR INCLUDES WAIVER OF FULL READING OF THE ORDINANCE.

Recommendation: Waive reading of all Ordinances.

D.2. MINUTES - CLOSED SESSION OF AUG 21, 2018 4:30 PM (See A.2)

Recommendation: Approve as submitted.

D.3. MINUTES - REGULAR MEETING OF AUG 21, 2018 6:00 PM (See A.3)

Recommendation: Approve as submitted.

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Questions or comments from the public on a Public Hearing matter are limited to five minutes per individual and must pertain to the subject under consideration.

Those wishing to speak should complete and submit a GOLDENROD speaker slip to the Sergeant-at-Arms.

E.1. A GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT, CHANGE OF ZONE, AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF A DONUT STORE / CONVENIENCE STORE WITH GASOLINE SALES LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF PERRIS BOULEVARD AND COTTONWOOD AVENUE. (Report of: Community Development)

Community Development Director Sandzimier notified the City Council that the applicant requested to continue the item to the City Council Meeting on October 3, 2018.

Recommendations: That the City Council:

1. **ADOPT** Resolution No. 2018-XX: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Moreno Valley **CERTIFYING** the Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the Yum Yum Donuts Moreno Valley project,

inclusive of all related applications on file with the Community Development Department, incorporated herein by this reference, whereby the Mitigated Negative Declaration has been completed in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act, and the information and findings contained in the Mitigated Negative Declaration reflects the City's independent judgment and analysis; and **ADOPTING** the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program prepared for the Yum Yum Donuts Moreno Valley project; and

- ADOPT Resolution No. 2018-XX: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Moreno Valley approving General Plan Amendment PEN16-0086, based on the findings contained in this resolution, and as shown on the attachment included as Exhibit A; and
- 3. **INTRODUCE** and conduct the first reading by title only of Ordinance No. 2018-XX approving a Zone Change (PEN16-0087) from Office Commercial (OC) to Community Commercial (CC) for the areas described in the Ordinance, based on the findings in the Ordinance, and the revised Zoning Atlas; and
- 4. **ADOPT** Resolution No. 2018-XX: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Moreno Valley approving Conditional Use Permit PEN16-0088 based on the findings contained in this resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval included as Exhibit A; and
- 5. **SCHEDULE** the introduced Ordinance for second reading and final action for the next regular City Council meeting.

RESULT: WITHDRAWN

Item will be placed on the October 2, 2018 Council meeting agenda.

Mayor Pro Tem Baca advised the public that they have the opportunity to comment on the item on October 2, 2018.

F. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDARS FOR DISCUSSION OR SEPARATE ACTION

F.1. 3237: MAYORAL APPOINTMENTS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND THE EMERGING LEADERS COUNCIL (Report of: City Clerk)

City Clerk Jacquez-Nares provided the report.

Council Member Giba questioned whether the application for applicant JoAnn Stephan is the same one she initially submitted.

City Clerk Jacquez-Nares confirmed the application was the original submission.

Council Member Giba asked if all of the appointments are presented as a slate.

City Clerk Jacquez-Nares replied in the affirmative.

Council Member Giba requested confirmation that the applications are submitted for approval as a slate and not individually.

City Clerk Jacquez-Nares confirmed the applications must be voted on as a group.

Community Development Director Sandzimier corrected his earlier statement regarding Public Hearing Item No. E.1. The Item will be heard at the meeting on October 2, 2018.

Council Member Marquez explained that the current policy of appointing multiple individuals punishes those applicants whose qualifications aren't questioned and requested that future appointments be proposed individually. He voiced his opposition to the appointments of Robert Harris and JoAnn Stephan.

Council Member Giba expressed his approval of Wendy Acuna and agreed with Council Member Marquez's previous statement.

Council Member Cabrera conveyed his support of all three applicants. Council Member Cabrera requested that the item be placed on the September 18th agenda.

Recommendation:

1. Receive and confirm the Mayoral appointments as follows:

Emerging Leaders Council

<u>Name</u> Wendy Acuna	<u>Position</u> Member	<u>Term</u> Ending 05/31/19
Planning Commission		
<u>Name</u>	Position	<u>Term</u>
Robert Harris	Member	Ending 03/31/2021
JoAnn Stephan	Member	Ending 03/31/2021
RESULT: WITHDRAWN		

Item will be placed on the September 18, 2018 Council meeting agenda.

F.2. 2018 CITY COUNCIL COMMISSION, BOARD, AND TASKFORCE PARTICIPATION APPOINTMENTS (Report of: City Clerk)

City Manager DeSantis provided the report.

Council Member Giba inquired as to the written notice provided by the Council Member resigning from the Sub-Committees.

Mayor Pro Tem Baca read the notice out loud.

Council Member Cabrera asked for verification of the proposed appointments involving himself.

City Attorney Koczanowicz read the names of the recommended Boards and Commissions for Council Member Cabrera.

Mayor Pro Tem Baca queried whether the City Clerk is tasked with updating the rosters on the City's website.

City Clerk Jacquez-Nares responded in the affirmative.

Council Member Giba remarked that he was removed from every Sub-Committee by Mayor Pro Tem Baca upon her election to the City Council. He reasoned that, as an elected official of the City, the act of prohibiting him from serving on any Sub-Committee and only allowing participation from three Council Members, effectively leaves out 50% of the resident's input. He emphasized the importance of three of the committees. He stated his availability to serve on a Committee and noted that numerous Committees lack an alternate, which could lead to meeting cancellations if no quorum is met. He urged residents to determine how many meetings were cancelled due to lack of quorum.

Mayor Pro Tem Baca remarked that Council Member Marquez cannot be forced to serve on a Committee and directed him to voice his complaints to Mayor Gutierrez and request to be appointed to a Committee.

Council Member Marquez encouraged residents to meet with him to voice their concerns. He indicated that calls and emails to Mayor Gutierrez have gone unanswered. He praised staff for their guidance and assistance.

Council Member Cabrera invited Council Members Giba and Marquez to meet with him to discuss any issues.

Recommendation: That the City Council:

1. Ratify the appointments to the various committees as noted on the Revised 2018 Council Committee Participation List – Terms End December 31, 2018.

RESULT: WITHDRAWN

Item will be placed on the September 18, 2018 Council meeting agenda.

G. GENERAL BUSINESS

G.1. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORENO VALLEY, CALIFORNIA, ADDING CHAPTER 12.45 "PARKING REGULATIONS FOR VEHICLES CONNECTED FOR ELECTRIC CHARGING PURPOSES" TO THE MORENO VALLEY MUNICIPAL CODE (Report of: Financial & Management Services)

Chief Financial Officer/City Treasurer Eyerman provided the report.

Recommendation:

1. Introduce and conduct the first reading by title only of Ordinance No. 942. An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Moreno Valley, California, adding Chapter 12.45 "Parking Regulations for Vehicles Connected for Electric Charging Purposes" to the Moreno Valley Municipal Code.

RESULT:APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]MOVER:Ulises Cabrera, Council MemberSECONDER:David Marquez, Council MemberAYES:Victoria Baca, David Marquez, Ulises Cabrera, Jeffrey J. GibaABSENT:Dr. Yxstian A. Gutierrez

G.2. RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MORENO VALLEY SERVING AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOR THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF MORENO VALLEY APPROVING THE AMENDED RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2019 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2019 (ROPS 18-19B) (Report of: Financial & Management Services)

Chief Financial Officer/City Treasurer Eyerman provided the report.

Council Member Marquez asked for the amount required for the proposed item and whether it's the final time the item requires approval.

Chief Financial Officer/City Treasurer Eyerman provided the amount and remarked that the agreement is still in place for five more years.

Recommendations: That the City Council as Successor Agency:

1. Adopt Resolution No. SA 2018-04. A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Moreno Valley, California, Serving as Successor Agency to

the Community Redevelopment Agency of the City of Moreno Valley Approving the Amended Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for the Period of January 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019 (ROPS 18-19B), and Authorizing the City Manager acting for the Successor Agency or her Designee to Make Modifications Thereto.

- 2. Authorize the City Manager acting for the Successor Agency or her Designee to make modifications to the Schedule.
- 3. Authorize the transmittal of the ROPS 18-19B, for the period of January 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019, ("Exhibit A") to the Oversight Board for review and approval.

RESULT:	APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER:	David Marquez, Council Member
SECONDER:	Ulises Cabrera, Council Member
AYES:	Victoria Baca, David Marquez, Ulises Cabrera, Jeffrey J. Giba
ABSENT:	Dr. Yxstian A. Gutierrez

H. REPORTS

H.1. CITY COUNCIL REPORTS

(Informational Oral Presentation - not for Council action)

March Joint Powers Commission (JPC) - None

Riverside County Habitat Conservation Agency (RCHCA) - None

Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) - None

Riverside Transit Agency (RTA) - Council Member Marquez

Council Member Marquez reported the following:

Youth bus ridership typically drops during the summer months due to vacations and school recess. This year however, with RTA's summer 25 cent promotion, youth ridership reached record levels. Between June 1 and August 21, there were 170,000 youth boardings. That's 27 percent higher than the same time last year. The current promotion ended on Sept 3, but look for additional promotions in the near future.

Also, on September 15, RTA is hosting a job fair to interview candidates for several open positions. The event will be held at RTA headquarters located at 1825 Third Street in Riverside from 8am to 4pm. Call RTA at (951) 565-5000 for more details.

Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) - None

Western Riverside County Regional Conservation Authority (RCA) - None

School District/City Joint Task Force - None

H.2. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

(Informational Oral Presentation - not for Council action)

City Manager DeSantis reminded residents of the annual Youth Fest and Community Day of Service.

H.3. CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT

(Informational Oral Presentation - not for Council action)

City Attorney Koczanowicz reminded everyone that Measure M has been placed on the ballot and directed anyone interested in more information regarding the measure to the City's website.

Mayor Pro Tem Baca requested an explanation of Measure M, including who would bear the tax burden.

City Attorney Koczanowicz provided clarification and indicated that the business owners would pay the tax.

CLOSING COMMENTS AND/OR REPORTS OF THE CITY COUNCIL, COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, CITY AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOR THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, HOUSING AUTHORITY AND THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES.

Council Member Giba

- 1. Relayed his desire that everyone had a peace filled Labor Day weekend.
- 2. Notified every one of the upcoming Military Picnic on Saturday, September 8, 2018.
- 3. Remarked that he will attend SCAG on Thursday, September 6, 2018 and RCA on Monday, September 10, 2018.
- 4. On Tuesday, September 18, 2018 he will be in attendance at the SCAG Legislative Committee and at the Water Task Force on September 28, 2018.

Council Member Marquez

- 1. Expressed his desire to be back from Summer Recess.
- 2. Commended Parks & Community Services Director Solano and her staff for arranging the repairs to Morrison Park.
- 3. Called for patience from residents as road closures arise due to street repairs.
- 4. Asked the City Council for votes to place an item on an upcoming agenda considering a second squad for the Fire Department. Only Council Member Giba seconded.
- 5. Asserted his right as an elected official to be addressed properly.

Council Member Cabrera

- 1. Explained his reasoning for not voting for Council Member Marquez's previous request.
- 2. Encouraged residents to participate in the Community Day of Service and attend the Youth Fest.
- 3. Reiterated that Measure M is not a tax on the general public.
- 4. Chastised those taking down political signs, which are other's property.
- 5. Recommended two local restaurants.
- 6. Requested that the meeting be closed in memory of Dr. Steve Overton.
- 7. Notified everyone that Lake Perris will be the site of rowing events for the Olympics in 2028.
- 8. Will continue to work to find funds for road repairs, and assist students and senior citizens.

Mayor Pro Tem Baca

- 1. Notified every one of the upcoming El Grito event.
- 2. Thanked her colleagues for allowing her to chair the meeting.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Mayor Pro Tem Baca adjourned the meeting in memory of Pastor Dr. Steve Overton at 7:09 p.m.

Submitted by:

Pat Jacquez-Nares, CMC & CERA City Clerk Secretary, Moreno Valley Community Services District Secretary, City as Successor Agency for the Community Redevelopment Agency of the City of Moreno Valley Secretary, Moreno Valley Housing Authority Secretary, Board of Library Trustees

Approved by:

Dr. Yxstian A. Gutierrez Mayor City of Moreno Valley President, Moreno Valley Community Services District Chairperson, City as Successor Agency for the Community Redevelopment Agency of the City of Moreno Valley Chairperson, Moreno Valley Housing Authority Chairperson, Board of Library Trustees